

TENNESSEE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE COMMISSION MINUTES TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2016 1:30 p.m.

The November meeting of the Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission was held on November 15, 2016 in Nashville, Tennessee. Commissioner Kaegi was not present; however, Chairperson McDaniel and Commissioner Jones were present and constituted a quorum. TABC staff was represented by the following: Clay Byrd, Executive Director, Zack Blair, Asst. Director, Commission Counsel, Joshua Stepp, Commission Counsel, Keith Hollingshead-Cook, Admn. Services Director, Zac Pounds, CLEO Mark Hutchens, and Interim CLEO, Bond Tubbs.

1. APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES

Discussion/Action Taken: There were no alterations to the minutes. Commissioner Jones motioned for approval of the minutes and Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes.

2. RETAIL MATTERS

- A. OLD BUSINESS
- **B. NEW BUSINESS**
 - 1. M&J LIQUOR TOBACCO BEER RED BANK, TENNESSEE (HAMILTON COUNTY)

Applicant:

UMA Partnership (informal partnership)

Rikta Patel, 60%; Pintkumar Patel, 40%

Before the Commission is a request for licensing of a new retail package store to be located at 3603 Dayton Blvd., Red Bank, Tennessee 37415. Applicant will lease the premises from landlord, Drew Haskins, for approximately \$1,500 per month. The TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to receipt of the following:

- a. TABC inspection
- b. Acknowledgment of TABC Rules & Regulations

c. license fee

Discussion/Action Taken: Commissioner Jones motioned for conditional approval, subject to receipt of any missing items. Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes. Update: license no. 4116 issued 11.16.2016

2. A & S LIQUOR & WINE NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE (DAVIDSON COUNTY)

Applicant: Amanda Massad (sole proprietor)

Before the Commission is a request for licensing of a retail package store to be located at 5113 Nolensville Rd., Nashville, TN 37211. Landlord, Mara Investment Partnership, for approximately \$3,000 per month. The TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to receipt of the following:

- a. TABC inspection
- b. Acknowledgment of TABC Rules & Regulations
- c. license fee

Discussion/Action Taken: Commissioner Jones motioned for conditional approval, subject to receipt of all missing items. Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes.

3. NASHVILLE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE (DAVIDSON COUNTY)

Applicant: The Metropolitan Nashville Airport Authority

Address: One Terminal Drive, Ste., 501, Nashville, TN 37214

Applicant was conditionally approved for licensing at the June 28, 2016 Commission meeting. Director Byrd granted an initial thirty day extension which ran through October 26, 2016. Applicant submitted a request for a second (and final) thirty day extension on October 24, 2016; this approval must come before the full Commission. The matter was not voted on at the October 25, 2016 Commission meeting. The applicant is requesting approval for a second and final thirty day extension and if approved, the applicant would have until November

¹ A Tennessee General Partnership

25, 2016 to be ready for the issuance of the license. <u>TABC staff recommends</u> approval of this second and final extension.

Discussion/Action Taken: Commissioner Jones motioned for approval, Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes. Update: license no. 4119 issued 11/23/2016.

4. EAST END LIQUOR SHOPPE (LICENSE NO. 3950) KNOXVILLE, TENNESSEE (KNOX COUNTY)

Applicant:

East End Spirits, Inc.

Shareholder(s):

Carl H. Daugherty, Jr., President, 100%

Pre-approval:

Carl H. Daugherty Jr., V.P, 50%

Christopher M. Pierce, President, 24% Cortney D. Pierce, Sec/Treasurer, 26%

Post-approval:

Carl H. Daugherty, Jr., 100%

Before the Commission is a request for approval of a transfer of ownership interest in the corporation doing business at 5406 Asheville Hwy., Knoxville, TN 37914. Carl H. Daugherty Jr. is already a shareholder in the corporation and would now be the sole shareholder in the corporation. The TABC staff recommends approval of this request.

Discussion/Action Taken: Commissioner Jones motioned for approval. Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes. Update: databse updated

5. HAPPY OURS WINE & SPIRITS FRANKLIN, TENNESSEE (WILLIAMSON COUNTY)

Applicant:

Happy Ours, Inc.

Shareholder(s):

Nicole Barclay, President, 100%

David Kaiser, Secretary

Current:

Wine and Liquor Depot, LLC (Sarah McCormick, 95% and

Harold McCormick, 5%) d/b/a Wine and Liquor Depot,

LLC (license no. 3889)

Proposed:

Happy Ours, Inc. d/b/a Happy Ours Wine & Spirits

Before the Commission is a request for approval of a complete transfer of ownership in the retail package store located at 327 Independence Sq., Franklin, Tennessee 37064. Applicant is purchasing the business and inventory² from the current owner and the landlord has agreed for the current owner to assign its lease to the applicant. The TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to receipt of the following items:

- a. TABC inspection (received day of meeting)
- b. Acknowledgment of TABC Rules & Regulations (received day of meeting)
- c. license fee (received)

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd noted that all conditional items had been received the morning of the meeting and changed his recommendation to a recommendation for approval with no conditions. Commissioner Jones motioned for approval. Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes. Update: license no. 4115 issued 11/15/2016

6. HIGHWAY 111 WINE AND SPIRITS BYRDSTOWN, TENNESSEE (PICKETT COUNTY)

Applicant: Highway 111 Wine and Spirits, LLC

Member(s): Jerry G. Parris, 100%

Before the Commission is a request for licensing of a new retail package store to be located at 8810 Highway 111, Byrdstown, Tennessee 38549. Mr. Parris owns the real property where the store will be located and will lease the premises to the applicant for approx. \$1,500 per month. The TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to receipt of the following items:

- a. TABC inspection
- b. Acknowledgment of TABC Rules & Regulation
- c. license fee

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd noted that staff had contacted the city to confirm that the city has allowed for- via referendum- retail package store to be located in Byrdstown. Commissioner Jones motioned for conditional approval,

² In accordance with Tennessee law, Sellers are to transfer title and possession of the liquor inventory to the applicant via TABC licensed wholesalers' involvement.

subject to receipt of all missing items. Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes.

7. NORTHRIDGE PACKAGE STORE JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE (WASHINGTON COUNTY)

Applicant:

ReLi Beverages, LLC

Member(s):

Rena Scharfstein,³ 50%

Lindsay Nickels, 50%

Current:

Northridge Package Store, LLC (Deliah Grunloh) d/b/a Northridge

Package Store

Proposed:

ReLi Beverages, LLC d/b/a Northridge Package Store

Before the Commission is a request for approval of a complete transfer of ownership in the retail package store located at 2902 Bristol Hwy., Johnson City, Tennessee 37601. Applicant is purchasing the business assets⁴ from the current owner and will lease the premises from landlord, Deliah Grunloh, for approx. \$2,000 per month. Rena Scharfstein and Lindsay Nickels are providing letters stating that Peter Nickels, Phillip Scharfstein, and Benjamin Scharfstein do not and will not have any interest or involvement in this package store with the understanding that revocation proceedings may be initiated upon finding that such persons are involved and/or have an interest in the establishment.⁵ This letter alleviates staff concerns regarding potential hidden ownership and the two store limit, and as such the TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to receipt of the following items:

In accordance with Tennessee law, Sellers are to transfer title and possession of the liquor inventory to the applicant via TABC licensed wholesalers' involvement.

³ Rena Sharfstein is also an owner of Appalachian Basin Asset Inc. (Rena Sharfstein, 45%; Phillip Sharfstein, 45%; Melanie Bowman, 10%) dba Colonel Steve's Wine and Liquor (license no. 4072) at 800 Market Street, Johnson City, TN 37604.

Phillip Sharfstein and Benjamin Scharfstein have ownership interest in One Stop Discount Wine & Liquors Inc., (Phillip Scharfstein, 45.5%; Benjamin Scarfstein, 45.5%; Melanie Bowman, 9%) d/b/a One Stop Wine & Spirits (license no. 1011) at 1735 W. State of Franklin Rd., Johnson City, TN 37604. Phillip Scharfstein also has ownership in Appalachian Basin Asset Inc (license no. 4072). Lindsay Nickels is married to Peter Nickels. Mr. Nickles' owns 100% membership interest in Libations LLC and Libations 2, LLC. Both are TABC retail package store licensees: Plaza Package Store (license no 3478) at 4471 N. Roan St., Unit #2, Johnson City, TN and Liquor Barn (license no. 3965) at 2929 Boones Creek Rd., Johnson City, Tennessee 37615.

⁶ Public Chapter No. 787 (2016) states, in part: Section 57-3-406(a), is amended by deleting subdivision (2) and substituting instead the following: (2) Except as provided in this subsection (a), nothing shall prohibit the holder of a retail license from having more than one (1) retail license; provided, however, that the holder of a retail license shall not have more than two (2) retail licenses. If the commission has issued more than two (2) licenses to any person prior to the effective date of this act, such person shall be allowed to continue to have all such licenses and may renew all such licenses. To view P.C. No. 787 in its entirety see http://share.tn.gov/sos/acts/109/pub/pc0787.pdf

- a. statement (as noted in summary above)
- b. TABC inspection
- c. license fee

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd noted that staff conducted a review of the application to determine the different ownership interests that were involved and did review precedent with respect to the ownership interests and the limit of two package stores. Director Byrd referenced AG OP 08-141(2008). Director Byrd noted that letters will be provided as noted in the conditions listed on the agenda.

Commissioner Jones announced that while he does know the Scharfstein family, there is no conflict that would prevent him from voting on this matter.

Commissioner Jones motioned for approval (conditional) and Commissioner McDaniel seconded the motion, and it passed with two ayes.

3. WINERY MATTERS

- A. OLD BUSINESS none
- **B. NEW BUSINESS**
 - 1. BIG CREEK WINERY PULASKI, TENNESSEE (GILES COUNTY)

Applicant:

Big Creek Winery, LLC

Member(s):

William J. Brymer, 100%

Applicant is request approval for issuance of a TABC winery license at 1800 Campbellsville Rd., Pulaski, Tennessee. Applicant will lease the premises from Big Creek Landscaping, LLC and the <u>TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to receipt of the following:</u>

- a. TABC inspection
- b. Acknowledgment of TABC Rules & Regulations
- c. license fee

Discussion/Action Taken: Commissioner Jones motioned for conditional approval, subject to receipt of all missing items. Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes. Update: license no. W-107 issued 11.23.16

2. HIGHLAND MANOR WINERY (LICENSE NO. W-29) JAMESTOWN, TENNESSEE (FENTRESS COUNTY)

Applicant:

Highland Manor Winery, Inc.

Shareholder(s):

Frederick Moody, President, 50%

Rhonda Moody, V.P., 50%

Pre-approval:

William J. Campbell, 100%

Dianne Maddox, Secretary, 0%

Post-approval:

Frederick Moody, 50% and Rhonda Moody, 50%

Before the Commission is request for approval of a transfer of ownership in the Highland Manor Inc., a TABC winery licensee located at 2965 S. York Hwy., Jamestown, TN 38556. Frederick and Ronda Moody are purchasing 100% ownership interest/assets in the corporation, and Highland Manor Inc., will remain the licensee. The Moody's have purchased the real property where the winery is located and will lease the premises to the corporation for approximately \$9,000 per month. The TABC staff recommends conditional approval of this request, subject to receipt of the following:

- a. TABC agent report
- b. TABC inspection
- c. Acknowledgment of TABC Rules & Regulations
- d. license fee-

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd noted that the remaining conditions for this items are (a) –agent report and (c) – Ack.of Rules and Regulations. Commissioner Jones motioned for conditional approval, subject to receipt of missing items. Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes. Update: database updated.

4. FARM WINERY MATTERS - none

5. WHOLESALE MATTERS

A. OLD BUSINESS - none

B. NEW BUSINESS

1. EMPIRE DISTRIBUTORS OF TENNESSEE INC.

Each of the below four wholesale businesses (a,b,c,d) are all wholly-owned subsidiaries of Kahn Ventures, Inc.⁷ and each are currently licensed by the TABC. Each are now requesting approval to merge three of the companies into one company

⁷ The sole stockholder of Kahn Ventures, Inc. is McLane Company Inc. The sole stockholder of McLane Company Inc. is Berkshire Hathaway Inc., a publicly traded corporation.

(company a), the surviving entity, and the name of the corporation of the surviving entity will be changed. The result of the merger will be a single corporate entity holding four separate licenses, each license in a different city. The wholesale operations of each of the four divisions will be operated by the same officers who currently run the wholesale operations of the existing licensees.

a. Horizon Wine & Spirits-Nashville Inc. dba Horizon Wine & Spirits Location: 3851 Industrial Pkwy, Nashville, TN 37218 (wholesale license no. 11)

Horizon Wine & Spirits-Nashville Inc. will be the surviving entity and the other three companies will merge into this company. The name of the corporation will be changed to Empire Distributors of Tennessee, Inc. d/b/a Empire Distributors of Tennessee-Nashville.

Companies (b), (c), and (d) below will merge into company (a) above.

- b. Horizon Wine & Spirits-Chattanooga Inc. d/b/a Horizon Wine & Spirits Location: 3794 Tag Road, Chattanooga, TN 37416 (wholesale license no. 36)

 <u>Post-merger</u>: Empire Distributors of Tennessee Inc. d/b/a Empire Distributors of Tennessee-Chattanooga
- c. B & T Distributing Company d/b/a B & T Distributing Company
 Location: 6520 Baum Dr., Knoxville, TN 37919 (wholesale license no. 41)
 <u>Post-merger</u>: Empire Distributors of Tennessee, Inc. d/b/a Empire Distributors of Tennessee-Knoxville
- d. Delta Wholesale Liquors, Inc. d/b/a Delta Wholesale Liquors
 Location: 3676 East Raines Road., Memphis, TN 38118 (wholesale license no. 43)
 <u>Post-merger</u>: Empire Distributors of Tennessee, Inc., d/b/a Empire Distributors of Tennessee Memphis

Applicant is requesting (1) Commission approval of the merger and (2) approval of name changes for all four wholesale locations. The TABC staff recommends conditional approval of these requests, subject to the following item(s):

- a. written documentation of expected date of merger and date name changes will be implemented
- b. executed merger documentation
- c. Secretary of State documentation indicating name changes

Discussion/Action

Hank Hildebrand, on behalf of applicant, commented that the will close on the 31st of December 2016. The name change would be effective at the time of the merger. The executed merger documentation will be available after the first of January and the Sect. of State documentation would follow after. Andy Cox was also present.

Director Byrd reviewed the matter to the Commission and recommended conditional approval of the requests. There were two motions for this matter.

(1) Commissioner Jones stated a motion for approval; Director Byrd asked the motion be a conditional approval and Commissioner Jones re-stated the motion. Commissioner Jones motioned for conditional approval of the merger subject to receipt of any missing documentation to satisfy the staff of the ABC, and Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion and it passed with two ayes.

(2) Commissioner Jones motioned for approval of the names changes for all four licensees, conditioned upon receipt of such documentation that satisfies the staff; Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; the motion passed with two ayes.

2. WEST TENNESSEE CROWN DISTRIBUTING CO. CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE (HAMILTON COUNTY)

Applicant:

West Tennessee Crown Distributing Co.

Shareholder(s):

Georgia Crown Distributing Co., 100%

Officer(s):

Keith Riggins, Susan E. Rich, John M. Tanzine, III

Applicant has submitted a request for licensing of a new wholesale location at 3875 N Hawthornse St., Chattanooga, TN 37406. Applicant would lease the premises from Georgia Crown Distributing Co (d/b/a Tennessee Crown Distributing Co.) West Tennessee Crown Distributing Co. already holds a wholesale license (no. 19) in Memphis, Tennessee.

Applicant, West TN Crown Distributing Co. has not secured a TTB permit in its name at the Chattanooga location and therefore does not comply with the requirements of TCA 57-3-203.8 The TABC staff recommends denial of this application.

Discussion/Action Taken: Director Byrd noted that staff's recommend ion had changed since the agenda was published and then staff recommended, as agreed with the applicant, that this matter be continued to the next meeting. Commissioner Jones motioned the item of West TN Crown Dist. be moved until the December 20, 2016 meeting. Chairperson McDaniel seconded the motion; it passed with two ayes.

6. DISTILLERY/BREWERY

1. OLD DOMINICK DISTILLERY MEMPHIS, TENNESSEE (SHELBY COUNTY)

⁸ TCA 57-3-203, which states, in part, (c) No wholesale alcoholic spirituous beverage license shall be issued until the applicant has secured a basic permit to engage in the wholesale liquor business from the federal government.

Applicant:

Old Dominick Distillery, LLC

Member(s): D.

D. Canale & Co., 100% Chris W. Canale, Jr, President

Kristin Anglin, CEO Jay Fik, Secretary

Before the Commission is a request for licensing of a new distillery to be located at 305 South Front Street, Memphis, TN 38103. Applicant would lease the premises where the distillery will be located from Dominick Properties, LLC. Staff has identified a dual interest between the applicant and liquor-by-the-drink licensees in violation of TABC rules⁹ and therefore recommends—denial of this application.

Discussion/Action Taken:

Director Byrd noted that when applicant and staff began communicating about the licensure of Old Dominick in 2014, an issue was raised with respect to the applicant having leasehold interest in liquor-by-the-drink establishments, which is prohibited under dual interest provision in TABC rules. In reliance on communication with the former Director about a trust arrangement, the applicant invested funds into the business and building the facility. Director Byrd noted that he informed applicant that he was uncomfortable allowing a trust to be utilized in the manner in which it was previously approved and that the printed agenda included a recommendation for denial because at that time there was not an agreement as to what would be a satisfactory solution. Since the publication of the agenda an arrangement was discussed in which the applicant would create a irrevocable trust to grant to the trustee - independent of the conflict -the leasehold interest property that held the lbd property and that if the beneficiary was not conflicted in the dual interest prohibition, that staff would be comfortable with that arrangement.

Director Byrd then recommended conditional approval of the request, subject to:

- receipt of the following: trust documents and staff review
- rent arrangements with lbds lowered below 5%
- license fee
- TABC inspection
- Acknowledgment of TABC Rules & Regulations with that arrangement.

⁹ 0100-03-.16 DUAL INTERESTS PROHIBITED.

⁽¹⁾ Manufacturer and Importer.

No manufacturer or importer, or representative of the same, shall have any kind of interest financial, fixtures, furnishings, stock ownership, loans, gifts, securing loans, guaranteeing payment of any loan, lease of property or participate in the profits, either directly or indirectly, in any wholesaler or any retail on-premise or off-premise liquor establishment in Tennessee.

It was noted that the trust documentation would be forthcoming and Mr. Cheek acknowledged that applicant understood the risk and was willing to assume the risk should the TABC rules not be changed.

Commissioner Jones noted that he was prepared make a motion for approval subject to the contingencies that had been alluded to in the discussion and requested that Director Byrd restate the contingencies for a conditional approval. Direct Byrd then stated the contingencies as follows:

- creation of trust where the grantor of the trust (dual interest holder in both the proposed manufacturer and a commercial building which lbd establishments located in those facilities) would convey that trust property to an independent trustee who would manage that trust property and then any income/benefit derived from the trust property would flow to a beneficiary who is not the grantor or anyone that is an interest holder in the distillery. The trust would be irrevocable the transfer of the property to the trust could not be changed absent a change in the rule or law that would allow a dual interest to occur.
- TABC inspection
- Acknowledgment of Rules and Regulations
- license fee

Commissioner Jones motioned to approve this license subject to staff's satisfaction of items as stated. Commissioner McDaniel seconded the motion and it passed with two ayes.

- 7. **PRIVATE CLUBS** none
- 8. RETAIL FOOD STORES
 - A. Please see the list of TABC licensed retail food stores beginning on page 11.

Discussion/Action Taken:

Director Byrd noted that staff had received 25 retail food store applications as of the morning of the meeting, and that 38 jurisdictions approved retail food stores in their jurisdiction in November. Chairperson McDaniel thanked staff for their work. Staff will update the Commission at the following month's meeting on the total number of jurisdictions that have approved retail food stores.

- 9. INITIAL ORDERS TO BE REVIEWED BY THE COMMISSION none
- 10. SERVER APPEALS none
- 11. MISC -

A. - TABC EMAIL DISTRIBUTION LIST SIGN-UP. PLEASE VISIT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS TO SIGN UP TO RECEIVE EMAIL NOTIFICATIONS FROM THE TABC: https://www.tn.gov/abc/topic/email-us

*Director Byrd noted that the list now included 808 email addresses.

B. WHOLESALER DELINQUENCIES – UPDATE & DISCUSSION ON PLAN OF ACTION -

(1) RETAIL PACKAGE STORE LICENSEES

In accordance with the discussion at last month's Commission meeting and the below statutes, staff has sent notices of financial viability/responsibility requirements under T.C.A. § 57-3-104(c)(10) to approximately 25 TABC retail package stores. At this time, staff is focusing on those package stores with a minimum of 20 reported delinquencies. The letter provides a list of several corrective measures that could be taken by the licensee, including:

- Take steps to ensure that payment is received prior to the expiration of the 10 business day deadline, such as hand delivering payment or mailing payment well ahead of the deadline;
- Use an electronic fund transfer (EFT) payment system or other electronic payment system;
- Use an escrow account established with the wholesalers; and
- Make payment upon delivery.

See the following link for a posting of retail package store licensees' delinquent account status with wholesalers: https://www.tn.gov/abc/section/public-information-and-forms

Tenn. Code Ann. § 57-3-404 provides, in part:

- (g) (1) No holder of a license for the sale of alcoholic beverages for wholesale or retail shall sell, deliver, or cause, permit or procure to be sold or delivered, any alcoholic beverages on credit, except that holders of wholesale licenses may sell on not more than ten (10) days' credit.
- (2) The ten-day period begins from delivery and receipt by the retail licensee. The ten-day period cannot include any day that the wholesaler is not open to make deliveries, receive payment or receive mail.
- (3) Any suspension of deliveries is a credit decision to be made by a wholesaler and a retail licensee.
- (4) A wholesaler shall be permitted to communicate with another wholesaler about the account status of any retail licensee.
- (5) Wholesalers shall advise the commission of any failure of a retailer to comply with this subsection (g).
- (6) The commission shall be permitted to post the account status of a retail licensee with any wholesaler on its web site.
 - (7) This subsection (g) shall not apply to nonalcoholic products.

Tenn. Code Ann. § 57-3-104(c), reads in part:

- (c) The commission shall have and exercise the following functions, duties and powers:
- (10) Refuse to issue or renew a license or permit if, upon investigation, the commission finds that the applicant for a license or permit has not demonstrated the financial capacity to operate the business in a manner consistent with the regulations of the commission or is not generally paying its debts as they come due except for debts as to which there is a bona fide dispute.

(2) LIQUOR-BY-THE DRINK LICENSEES

In furtherance of the discussion at last month's Commission meeting and pursuant to the below statutes, staff recommends initiating contested cases against LBD licensees that are delinquent in their payments to wholesalers.

Tenn. Code Ann. § 57-4-203 provides in part:

- (o) Extension of Credit by Wholesalers to Retailers.
- (1) No wholesaler licensed under § 57-3-203 shall be permitted to extend credit of any retailer licensed under § 57-4-101 unless pursuant to this subsection (o). All amounts due to any wholesaler from all sales to such retailers shall be due upon delivery of the product.
- (2) Notwithstanding the limitations of subdivision (o)(1), wholesalers licensed under § 57-3-203 may extend credit to a retailer licensed under § 57-4-101 for a period not to exceed ten (10) days from the date of the delivery of the product; provided, the payment is effected by electronic funds transfer or escrow prepayment.
- (3) It shall create a rebuttable presumption that a retailer licensed under § 57-4-101 is not financially responsible under § 57-3-104(c)(10) if the retailer fails to satisfy its obligations to any wholesaler in accordance with each wholesaler's credit terms twice within a twelve-month period. Upon being advised by any wholesaler licensed under § 57-3-203 twice within a twelve-month period that a retailer has failed to comply with the applicable credit terms, the commission shall set a hearing as soon as practicable at its next available meeting to determine whether the retailer can rebut the presumption created by this subdivision (o)(3). Upon a finding that the retailer is not financially responsible under § 57-3-104(c)(10), the commission may issue a fine, suspend or revoke the license, or make any other order it deems appropriate.

Discussion/Action Taken:

Director Byrd asked Commission Counsel, Keith Hollingshead-Cook, to address the Commission on this issue. Mr. Hollingshead-Cook commented on the relevant statutes and updated the Commission on what had been done since the previous meeting and noted staff's plan of action moving forward. Attorney Hollingshead-Cook also noted the following:

-Since the last meeting staff had began to send letters to package stores explaining the statutory requirements and noting the letters included suggestions of remedies to correct the issues.

-Mr. Hollingshead-Cook also noted that it is the opinion of TABC staff that the statute, T.C.A § 57-3-404(g)(3), specifically states that a wholesaler may cease doing business with a retail package store - that it is a business decision for the wholesaler to make. Additionally, Mr. Hollingshead-Cook commented that it is the opinion of TABC staff that TABC rule 0100-06-.09 concerning discrimination, does not prohibit a wholesaler from doing or ceasing to do business with a retail package store that is delinquent.

Concerning liquor-by-the-drink establishments, Attorney Hollingshead-Cook noted the following:

-staff had compiled a list of delinquent liquor-by-the-drink establishments who have two or more delinquencies. Mr. Hollingshead-Cook noted that about sixty establishments had at least two reported delinquencies, and of those sixty, seven of those had five or more reported delinquencies, and the most reported delinquencies of any licensee on the list was approximately seventeen. The vast majority of those on the list had two or three reported delinquencies.

-staff's plan was to collect supporting documentation from the wholesalers and to initiate contested case hearings against these licensees and handle these similarly to how staff handles citations and also that the hearings, if needed, would occur in front of an Administrative Law Judge.

(3) COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

The following members from the public addressed the Commission on this matter:

- -Dan Haskell, General Counsel of the Tennessee Hospitality and Tourism Association noting that the Commission may want to consider to moving slowly in implementing the process that staff described and allowing time for the businesses to work through the problem.
- -Attorney Hank Hildebrand noted the differences in the delinquencies for liquor-bythe drink establishments as opposed to package stores; he added that the delinquencies reported his association collect supporting documentation from their members.
- -Director Byrd noted that the general assembly has mandated that wholesalers report delinquencies to the Commission and that all license types will be informed of what the law provides.
- -Chairperson McDaniel noted that once a quarter the staff could update the Commission

12. NEXT MEETING – Tuesday, December 20, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.

13. UPCOMING MEETINGS

- Tuesday, November 15, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.
- Tuesday, December 20, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.
- Tuesday, January 24, 2017 at 1:30 p.m.
- February 2017 (TBD) to be set at the next meeting

*Director Byrd updated the Commission on the rule proposals from the industry, noting that staff had been working with the Secretary of State's office on this matter and looking at a timeline for rulemaking hearing rules and expressed appreciation for the help received from the Secretary of State's office in reviewing the drafts. Director Byrd noted that those drafts would be provided to the individuals that submitted proposals.

*Chairperson McDaniel recognized Chief Mark Hutchens for his 30 service with the agency, noting his upcoming retirement and thanked him for his service. Chairperson McDaniel welcomed and introduced Bond Tubbs (Special Agent in Charge-TABC Memphis office) as the Interim Chief Law Enforcement Officer.

Chairperson McDaniel closed the meeting

Below is the cumulative list of TABC licensed retail food stores. This list includes 575 retail food stores and is current through the morning of November 10, 2016. The October agenda listed 571 retail food stores.

*new additions to the list

Retail_Name	ADDRESS	City_St
ALDI 13	836 LOUISVILLE ROAD	ALCOA, TN 37701
FOOD CITY 626	121 NORTH HALL RD.	ALCOA, TN 37701
KENJO MARKET 7	3012 AIRPORT HWY	ALCOA, TN 37701
KROGER 862	244 S. HALLS RD.	ALCOA, TN 37701
WALMART 672	1030 HUNTERS CROSSING	ALCOA, TN 37701
FOOD LION 861	536 RICHARDS RD.	ANTIOCH, TN 37013
KROGER 520	5319 MOUNT VIEW RD.	ANTIOCH, TN 37013
PUBLIX 1235	3532 MUFREESBORO PIKE	ANTIOCH, TN 37013
WALMART 5058	3035 HAMILTON CHURCH RD.	ANTIOCH, TN 37013
KROGER 463	11635 HWY 70	ARLINGTON, TN 38002
FOOD LION 693	314 FREY ST.	ASHLAND CITY, TN 37015
WALMART 1226	1626 HIGHWAY 12 S	ASHLAND CITY, TN 37015
INGLES 88	917 DECATUR PIKE	ATHENS, TN 37303
PRICE LESS IGA 43	1312 DECATUR PIKE	ATHENS, TN 37303
WALMART 663	1815 DECATUR PIKE	ATHENS, TN 37303
KROGER 433	11630 HWY 51 S.	ATOKA, TN 38004
SAM'S CLUB 6260	8480 HWY. 64	BARTLETT, TN 38133
KROGER 456	7615 HWY 70	BARTLETT, TN 38133
WALMART 950	8400 HIGHWAY 64	BARTLETT, TN 38133
ALDI 66	2867 KIRBY WHITTEN RD.	BARTLETT, TN 38134
KROGER 405	5995 STAGE RD.	BARTLETT, TN 38134
KROGER 489	2942 KIRBY WHITTEN RD.	BARTLETT, TN 38134
WALMART 3599	6520 MEMPHIS ARLINGTON RD.	BARTLETT, TN 38135
KROGER 527	7087 HWY. 70 S.	BELLEVUE, TN 37221
FOOD CITY 669	1921 HIGHWAY 394	BLOUNTVILLE, TN 37617
PUBLIX 1057	10638 CONCORD RD.	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
CONCORD GENERAL STORE	1101 WILSON PIKE	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
COSTCO 386	98 SEABOARD LN	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
FRESH MARKET 58	235 FRANKLIN RD.	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
KROGER 589	6690 NOLENSVILLE PIKE	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
KROGER 596	210 FRANKLIN RD., SUITE 100	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027

PUBLIX 1021	101 CREEKSIDE CROSSING	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
PUBLIX 142	8105 MOORES LANE	BRENTWOOD, TN 37027
FOOD CITY 617	1430 VOLUNTEER PARKWAY	BRISTOL, TN 37620
FOOD CITY 622	1317 VIRGINIA AVE.	BRISTOL, TN 37620
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 183	400 VOLUNTEER PARKWAY	BRISTOL, TN 37620
WALMART 620	220 CENTURY BLVD.	BRISTOL, TN 37620
FOOD GIANT 20	352 WEST MAIN ST.	BROWNSVILLE, TN 38012
TIGER MART 111	8374 OLD BROWNSVILLE	BRUNSWICK, TN 38014
EARTH FARE 425	5414 HIXSON PIKE	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37343
FOOD CITY 705	1600 EAST 23RD ST,	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37403
KANKUS 5	702 CENTRAL AVE.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37403
FOOD CITY 715	703 SIGNAL MOUNTAIN RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3740
PUBLIX 1460	400 NORTH MARKET ST.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3740
WALMART 3659	501 SIGNAL MOUNTAIN RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3740
WHOLE FOODS 6	301 MANUFACTURER'S RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3740
FOOD CITY 716	3801 TENNESSEE AVE.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 37409
FOOD CITY 759	4011 BRAINERD RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3741
WALMART 4671	4110 SHALLOWFORD RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3741
WALMART 5251	490 GREENWAY VIEW DR.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3741
FOOD CITY 726	3600 HIXSON PIKE	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3741
WALMART 3619	3901 HIXSON PIKE, SUITE 181	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3741
FOOD CITY 706	4510 HIGHWAY 58	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3741
WALMART 3660	3550 CUMMINGS WAY	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3741
ALDI 91	5706 LEE HIGHWAY	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3742
EARTH FARE 420	1814 GUNBARRELL RD. SUITE 100	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3742
FOOD CITY 701	7804 EAST BRAINERD RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3742
FOOD CITY 735	6951 LEE HIGHWAY	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3742
FRESH MARKET 22	2288 GUNBARREL RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3742
PUBLIX 1165	8644 EAST BRAINERED RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3742
SAM'S CLUB 8112	6101 LEE HIGHWAY	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3742
WALMART 1469	2020 GUNBARREL RD. SUITE 250	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3742
WALMART 5143	8101 EAST BRAINERD RD.	CHATTANOOGA, TN 3742
FOOD CITY 603	731 HWY 11 W.	CHURCH HILL, TN 37642
FOOD LION 1497	701 HIGHWAY 11 WEST	CHURCH HILL, TN 37642
KENJO MARKET 14	101 SILVER LAKE RD.	CHURCH HILL, TN 37642

KROGER 540	2100 LOWES DR.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
QUICK STOP FOOD MART	531 N. SECOND ST.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
SAM'S CLUB 6512	3315 GUTHRIE HWY	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
THE SILVER DOLLAR	2700 TRENTON RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
WALMART 4469	2551 WHITFIELD RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
WALMART 673	3050 WILMA RUDOLPH BLVD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37040
FOOD LION 874	2304 MADISON ST.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37041
ALDI 20	1628A FORT CAMPBELL BLVD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
KROGER 544	1489 MADISON ST.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
PRICE LESS IGA 494	1151 FORT CAMP BELL BLVD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
PUBLIX 1425	1490 TINY TOWN RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
WALMART 1075	1680 FORT CAMPBELL BLVD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
WALMART 4589	216 DOVER RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
WALMART 4591	408 TINY TOWN RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37042
PUBLIX 1392	1771 MADISON ST.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37043
WALMART 3495	2315 MADISON ST.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37043
KROGER 582	110 DOVER CROSSING RD.	CLARKSVILLE, TN 37072
WALMART 698	4495 KEITH ST NW	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
WALMART 5263	2300 TREASURY DR. SE	CLEVELAND, TN 37323
ALDI 89	315 PAUL HUFF PARKWAY	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
COOKE'S 5417	3400 KEITH ST.	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
FOOD CITY 712	255 OCOEE CROSSING NW	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
FOOD LION 941	125 STUART RD.	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
PUBLIX 1356	635 PAUL HUFF PARKWAY NW	CLEVELAND, TN 37312
FRESH N' LOW 3870	3870 CANDIES CREEK LN. NW	CLEVELAND, TN 37313
FOOD CITY 743	2310 MCGRADY DR.	CLEVELAND, TN 37323
FOOD CITY 654	507 S. CHARLES SEIVERS BLVD.	CLINTON, TN 37716
GIT N GO MARKET 1	1106 N. CHARLES G SEIVERS BLVD.	CLINTON, TN 37716
GIT N GO MARKET 2	501 S. CHARLES G SEIVERS BLVD.	CLINTON, TN 37716
GIT N GO MARKET 3	630 CLINCH AVE	CLINTON, TN 37716
GIT N GO MARKET 4	2254 N. CHARLES G SEIVERS BLVD.	CLINTON, TN 37716
INGLES 9	190 CLINCH AVE.	CLINTON, TN 37716
WALMART 4635	150 TANNER LN.	CLINTON, TN 37716
ALDI 74	523 W. POPLAR AVE	COLLIERVILLE, TN 38017
KROGER 387	240 NEW BYHALIA RD.	COLLIERVILLE, TN 38017
KROGER 481	3685 HOUSTON LEVEE RD.	COLLIERVILLE, TN 38017

WALMART 175	560 W POPLAR AVE.	COLLIERVILLE, TN 38017
ALDI 26	442 S. JEFFERSON AVE.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
FOOD LION 2149	377 WEST JACKSON ST.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
FOOD LION 995	1245 EAST SPRING ST.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
HOME TOWN IGA 42	1010 N.WASHINGTON AVE	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
KROGER 893	445 SOUTH JEFFERSON AVE.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
WALMART 657	768 S. JEFFERSON AVE.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38501
SAM'S CLUB 4930	1177 SAMS ST.	COOKEVILLE, TN 38506
ALDI 64	1610 GERMANTOWN PARKWAY	CORDOVA, TN 38016
COSTCO 352	2431 N. GERMANTOWN PKWY	CORDOVA, TN 38016
KROGER 410	676 N. GERMANTOWN PKWY	CORDOVA, TN 38018
KROGER 426	1675 N. GERMANTOWN PKWY	CORDOVA, TN 38018
WALMART 2322	577 N. GERMANTOWN PARKWAY	CORDOVA, TN 38018
IGA MIDWAY	7345 TAZEWELL PK	CORRYTON, TN 37721
KROGER 418	951 HWY. 51 N.	COVINGTON, TN 38019
NAIFEH'S CASH SAVER	738 HWY 51 N	COVINGTON, TN 38019
WALMART 93	201 LANNY BRIDGES AVE.	COVINGTON, TN 38019
FOOD CITY 656	1180 WEST AVE.	CROSSVILLE, TN 38555
KROGER 599	265 HIGHLAND SQUARE	CROSSVILLE, TN 38555
PRICE LESS IGA 495	75 GENESIS SQUARE	CROSSVILLE, TN 38555
WALMART 687	168 OBED PLZ, SUITE 108	CROSSVILLE, TN 38555
FOOD CITY 662	141 TOWNE CENTRE DR.	CROSSVILLE, TN 38571
KROGER 503	1840 DECHERD BLVD	DECHERD, TN 37324
ALDI 24	781 HIGHWAY 46 SOUTH	DICKSON, TN 37055
FOOD LION 978	303 HENSLEE DR.	DICKSON, TN 37055
KROGER 523	143 HENSLEE DR.	DICKSON, TN 37055
WALMART 264	175 BEASLEY DR.	DICKSON, TN 37055
WALMART 4226	16773 RANKIN AVE.	DUNLAP, TN 37327
KROGER 392	2525 LAKE RD.	DYERSBURG, TN 38024
WALMART 677	2650 LAKE RD.	DYERSBURG, TN 38024
FOOD CITY 710	3715 RINGGOLD RD.	EAST RIDGE, TN 37412
FOOD CITY 714	6723 RINGGOLD RD.	EAST RIDGE, TN 37412
FOOD LION 634	4340 RINGGOLD RD.	EAST RIDGE, TN 37412
WALMART 4692	4150 RINGGOLD RD.	EAST RIDGE, TN 37412
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 141	416 HIGHWAY 91	ELIZABETHTON, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 168	1258 MILLIGAN HIGHWAY	ELIZABETHTON, TN 37601
FOOD CITY 631	920 BROAD ST.	ELIZABETHTON, TN 37643
INGLES 397	768 W. ELK AVE.	ELIZABETHTON, TN 37643

WALMART 690	1001 OVER MOUNTAIN DR.	ELIZABETHTON, TN 37643
FOOD CITY 747	841 US 411 N.	ETOWAH, TN 37331
PUBLIX 1360	7014 CITY CENTER WAY	FAIRVIEW, TN 37062
WALMART 3137	7100 HOPGOOD RD.	FAIRVIEW, TN 37643
FRESH MARKET 21	11535 KINGSTON PIKE	FARRAGUT, TN 37934
INGLES 91	11847 KINGSTON PIKE	FARRAGUT, TN 37934
KROGER 686	189 BROOKLAWN ST.	FARRAGUT, TN 37934
PUBLIX 176	1021 RIVERSIDE DR.	FRANKLIN, TN 37069
ALDI 52	209 S. ROYAL OAKS BOULEVARD	FRANKLIN, TN 37064
KROGER 568	411 WHITMAN RD.	FRANKLIN, TN 37064
KROGER 570	3054 COLUMBIA AVE	FRANKLIN, TN 37064
KROGER 576	595 HILLSBORO RD.	FRANKLIN, TN 37064
SPROUTS 580	1010 MURFREESBORO RD. SUITE 194	FRANKLIN, TN 37064
KROGER 526	2020 MALLORY LANE	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
KROGER 592	1203 MURFRESBORO RD.	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
PUBLIX 1031	1400 LIBERTY PIKE, STE 200	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
SAM'S CLUB 6249	3070 MALLORY LN.	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
WALMART 272	3600 MALLORY LN.	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
WHOLE FOODS 1	1566 WEST MCEWEN DR.	FRANKLIN, TN 37067
PUBLIX 160	2020 FIELDSTONE PKWY	FRANKLIN, TN 37069
ALDI 60	571 VILLAGE GREEN DR.	GALLATIN, TN 37066
FOOD LION 725	471 EAST MAIN ST.	GALLATIN, TN 37066
KROGER 569	2011 NASHVILLE PIKE	GALLATIN, TN 37066
KROGER 897	845 NASHVILLE PIKE	GALLATIN, TN 37066
PUBLIX 1033	1483 NASHVILLE PIKE	GALLATIN, TN 37066
WALMART 674	1112 NASHVILLE PIKE	GALLATIN, TN 37066
FOOD CITY 611	1219 E. PARKWAY HWY 321	GATLINBURG, TN 37738
FRESH MARKET 39	9375 POPLAR AVE.	GERMANTOWN, TN 38138
KROGER 419	7735 FARMINGTON BLVD.	GERMANTOWN, TN 38138
WHOLE FOODS 2	7828 US HWY 72	GERMANTOWN, TN 38138
SPROUTS 579	3150 VILLAGE SHOPS DR. SUITE 105	GERMANTOWN, TN 38738
H.G HILL 38	212 GOODLETTSVILLE PLAZA	GOODLETTSVILLE, TN 37072
KROGER 541	123 NORTHCREEK BLVD.	GOODLETTSVILLE, TN 37072
PUBLIX 1141	460 LONG HOLLOW PIKE	GOODLETTSVILLE, TN 37072
FOOD CITY 670	125 JUDGE GRESHAM RD.	GRAY, TN 37615
FOOD CITY 608	509 ASHEVILLE HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37743

INGLES 21	625 ASHEVILLE HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37743
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 108	225 EAST ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37743
FOOD CITY 606	905 SHAPPS FERRY RD.	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
FOOD CITY 663	2755 E. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
INGLES 70	2845 E. ANDREW JOHNSON	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
INGLES 870	1625 E. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 129	2490 ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
WALMART 680	3755 E. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
FOOD CITY 634	1130 S. ROAN ST.	HARRIMAN, TN 37748
KROGER 628	1820 ROAN STATE HIGHWAY	HARRIMAN, TN 37748
ALDI 56	500 W. MAIN STREET	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 370
CASH SAVER 11	213 W. MAIN ST.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 370
KROGER 519	170 E. MAIN ST.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 370
KROGER 571	1010 GLENBROOK WAY	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 370
PUBLIX 119	110 INDIAN LAKE BLVD.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 370
SAM'S CLUB 8257	301 INDIAN LAKE BLVD.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 370
TOTAL CONVENIENCE	593 NEW SHACKLE ISLAND RD.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 370
WALMART 1376	204 NO.ANDERSON LN.	HENDERSONVILLE, TN 370
ALDI 51	4751 LEBANON PIKE	HERMITAGE, TN 37076
KROGER 518	5544 OLD HICKORY BLVD.	HERMITAGE, TN 37076
KROGER 866	4400 LEBANON RD.	HERMITAGE, TN 37076
WALMART 710	4424 LEBANON PIKE	HERMITAGE, TN 37076
ALDI 92	5510 HIGHWAY 153, SUITE 1	HIXSON, TN 37343
FOOD CITY 703	5604 HIXSON PIKE	HIXSON, TN 37343
FOOD CITY 713	8530 HIXSON PIKE	HIXSON, TN 37343
PUBLIX 1166	5928 HIXSON PK, STE 112	HIXSON, TN 37343
WALMART 1606	5764 HIGHWAY 153	HIXSON, TN 37343
FOOD GIANT 1	1727 S. HIGHLAND	JACKSON, TN 38301
WALMART 393	2171 S. HIGHLAND AVE.	JACKSON, TN 38301
ALDI 75	6 STONEBRIDGE BLVD. STE C	JACKSON, TN 38305
FOOD GIANT 2	2596 CHRISTMASVILLE COVE	JACKSON, TN 38305
KROGER 398	941 N. PARKWAY	JACKSON, TN 38305
KROGER 448	41 STONEBROOK PLACE	JACKSON, TN 38305
KROGER 468	35 W. UNIVERSITY PKWY	JACKSON, TN 38305
SAM'S CLUB 6507	2120 EMPORIUM DR.	JACKSON, TN 38305
WALMART 335	2196 EMPORIUM DR.	JACKSON, TN 38305
TONY'S FOODLAND	5529 CLARKSVILLE HWY	JOELTON, TN 37080

FOOD CITY 601	2120 S. ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
FOOD LION 218	3120 BRISTOL HWY.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
FRESH MARKET 132	421 N. STATE OF FRANKLIN RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
KENJO MARKET 46	1518 MILLIGAN HWY	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
PRICE LESS FOODS 486	1950 S. ROAN STREET	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 114	1310 CHEROKEE RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 115	1702 W. MARKET ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 131	2900 BRISTOL HIGHWAY	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 132	901 W. WALNUT ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 133	1512 STATE OF FRANKLIN	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 143	607 TWIN OAKS DR.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 147	1908 EAST UNAKA AVE.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 167	408 N. BROADWAY	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 169	1001 S. ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37601
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 105	527 PRINCETON RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37602
ALDI 80	1400 W. MARKET STREET	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
EARTH FARE 410	1735 W. STATE OF FRANKLIN RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
FOOD CITY 629	920 N. STATE OF FRANKLIN RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
KROGER 261	112 SUNSET DR.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
KROGER 367	1805 W. STATE OF FRANKLIN	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 137	832 N. STATE OF FRANKLIN	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 142	900 SUNSET DR.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 170	2810 W. WALNUT ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
SAM'S CLUB 8222	3060 FRANKLIN TERRACE DR.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
WALMART 1080	3111 BROWNS MILL RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
WALMART 3829	2915 W. MARKET ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37604
FOOD CITY 641	4307 N. ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
INGLES 372	4470 N. ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 104	2607 SOUTH ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 107	4700 NORTH ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 111	5022 BOBBY HICK HIGHWAY	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 139	2695 BOONES CREEK RD.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 155	5019 BOBBY HICKS HIGHWAY	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37615
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 161	2900 N. ROAN ST.	JOHNSON CITY, TN 37686
FOOD CITY 640	500 FOREST DR.	JONESBOROUGH, TN 3765
INGLES 398	1200 W. JACKSON BLVD.	JONESBOROUGH, TN 3765
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 123	101 E. JACKSON BLVD.	JONESBOROUGH, TN 3765

ROADRUNNER MARKETS 124	141 BOONE ST.	JONESBOROUGH, TN 3765
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 109	1104 SOUTH WILCOX DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37602
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 145	4222 FORT HENRY DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37602
ALDI 81	2617 E. STONE DRIVE	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
FOOD CITY 657	300 CLINCHFIELD ST.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
KENJO MARKET 17	2209 W. STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
KROGER 328	1664 EAST STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
PRICE LESS FOODS 469	4320 A WEST STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
PRICE LESS FOODS 478	3006 N. JOHN B. DENNIS HWY	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
PRICE LESS FOODS 487	1328 S. JOHN B. DENNIS HWY	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 125	120 EAST STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 144	101 HOSPITALITY PL.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 154	1600 W. STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 172	1045 BLOOMINGDALE PIKE	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 176	828 W. CENTER ST.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
WALMART 5734	750 LYNN GARDEN DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
WALMART 599	3200 FT. HENRY DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
WALMART 742	2500 W. STONE DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37660
FOOD CITY 664	1911 MORELAND DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37663
INGLES 72	4335 FT. HENRY DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37663
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 174	1205 LYNN GARDEN DR.	KINGSPORT, TN 37663
FOOD CITY 605	1205 N. EASTMAN RD.	KINGSPORT, TN 37664
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 175	4001 MEMORIAL BLVD.	KINGSPORT, TN 37665
FOOD CITY 653	1000 LADD LANDING BLVD.	KINGSTON, TN 37763
FOOD CITY 677	5078 CLINTON HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37912
INGLES 307	215 CEDAR LANE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37912
KROGER 549	6702 CLINTON HIGHWAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37912
WALMART 1318	6777 CLINTON HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37912
KROGER 558	4414 ASHEVILLE HIGHWAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37914
	2429 UNIVERSITY COMMONS	
PUBLIX 1418	WAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37916
FOOD CITY 673	4216 N. BROADWAY ST.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37917
KROGER 506	2217 N. BROADWAY ST.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37917
FOOD CITY 685	4805 N. BROADWAY ST.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37918
FOOD CITY 688	7202 MAYNARDVILLE HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37918
INGLES 305	7220 NORRIS FREEWAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37918
KROGER 698	5201 NORTH BROADWAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37918
BUTLER & BAILEY	7513 NORTHSHORE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919

EARTH FARE 405	140 NORTH FOREST PARK BLVD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
FOOD CITY 674	5941 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
FOOD CITY 694	284 MORRELL RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
FRESH MARKET 11	4475 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
KROGER 848	4918 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
TRADER JOES 663	8001 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
WALMART 4167	2501 UNIVERSITY COMMONS WAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
WHOLE FOODS 3	6730 PAPERMILL DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37919
FOOD CITY 682	7608 MOUNTAIN GROVE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
KENJO MARKET 11	1400 N. CENTRAL	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
KENJO MARKET 12	3644 SEVIERVILLE PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
KENJO MARKET 31	3120 CHAPMAN HWY.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
KROGER 531	4409 CHAPMAN HIGHWAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
WALMART 1320	7420 CHAPMAN HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37920
ALDI 10	2801 SCHAAD RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
ALDI 15	5220 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
FOOD CITY 676	1950 WESTERN AVE.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
FOOD CITY 678	5801 WESTERN AVE.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
KROGER 870	4440 WESTERN AVE.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37921
ALDI 12	110 MOSS GROVE BLVD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37922
KENJO MARKET 29	10139 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37922
KROGER 525	9501 S. NORTHSHORE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37922
KROGER 684	9225 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37922
PUBLIX 1416	2010 TOWN CENTER BLVD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37922
KROGER 530	9161 MIDDLEBROOK PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37923
SAM'S CLUB 8256	8435 WALBROOK DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37923
WALMART 2065	8445 WALBROOK DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37923
FOOD CITY 655	7510 ASHEVILLE HWY,	KNOXVILLE, TN 37924
FOOD CITY 687	2712 LOWES CREEK RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37924
KENJO MARKET 22	7406 STRAW PLAINS PKWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37924
SAM'S CLUB 6572	2920 KNOXVILLE CENTER DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37924
WALMART 2310	3051 KINZEL WAY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37924

FOOD CITY 672	9565 MIDDLEBROOK PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37931
INGLES 304	7466 OAK RIDGE HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37931
KENJO MARKET 21	8901 OAK RIDGE HWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37931
FOOD CITY 616	11501 HARDIN VALLEY RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37932
COSTCO 1116	10745 KINGSTON PIKE	KNOXVILLE, TN 37934
EARTH FARE 400	10903 PARKSIDE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37934
PUBLIX 1415	11656 PARKSIDE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37934
WALMART 2932	10900 PARKSIDE DR.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37934
ALDI 11	4109 E. EMORY RD.	KNOXVILLE, TN 37938
WALMART 1319	7550 NORRIS FWY	KNOXVILLE, TN 37938
FOOD CITY 609	2946 WINFIELD DUNN PARKWAY	KODAK, TN 37764
KENJO MARKET 42	3422 WINFIELD DUNN PKWY	KODAK, TN 37764
KROGER 440	9025 US HIGHWAY 64	LAKELAND, TN 38002
SPROUTS 578	9050 HWY 64, SUITE A	LAKELAND, TN 38002
ALDI 42	108 CIRCLE DR.	LEBANON, TN 37087
KROGER 557	1418 W. MAIN ST. SUITE A	LEBANON, TN 37087
PUBLIX 1175	1702 WEST MAIN ST.	LEBANON, TN 37087
WALMART 671	615 S. CUMBERLAND ST.	LEBANON, TN 37087
WALIVIANI 0/1	013 S. COMBERTAND ST.	ELBANON, IN 37087
KENJO MARKET 27	1104 HWY 321 N.	LENIOR CITY, TN 37771
FOOD CITY 650	300 MARKET DR.	LENOIR CITY, TN 37771
INGLES 71	404 HWY 321 NORTH	LENOIR CITY, TN 37771
WALMART 741	911 HIGHWAY 321 N,	LENOIR CITY, TN 37771
KROGER 534	301 S. ELLINGTON PKWY	LEWISBURG, TN 37091
PRICE LESS IGA 585	1770 MOORESVILLE ROAD	LEWISBURG, TN 37091
WALMART 737	1334 NO. ELLINGTON P	LEWISBURG, TN 37091
WALMART 684	547 W. CHURCH ST.	LEXINGTON, TN 38351
FOOD CITY 632	2799 HWY. 72 N.	LOUDON, TN 37774
KENJO MARKET 3	4228 AIRPORT HWY	LOUISVILLE, TN 37777
ALDI 17	135 Gallatin Pike S.	MADISON, TN 37115
KROGER 514	200 GALLATIN PIKE SOUTH	MADISON, TN 37115
WALMART 5107	109 GALLATIN PIKE N.	MADISON, TN 37115
WALMART 695	2232 GALLATIN PIKE	MADISON, TN 37115
FOOD LION 722	944 HILLSBOROUGH RD.	MANCHESTER, TN 37355
WALMART 308	2518 HILLSBORO BLVD.	MANCHESTER, TN 37355
E.W. JAMES & SONS - MARTIN	145, COMMONS Dr.	MARTIN, TN 38237

WALMART 107	134 COURTRIGHT RD.	MARTIN, TN 38237
FOOD CITY 651	1610 W. BROADWAY AVE.	MARYVILLE, TN 37801
KENJO MARKET 26	2601 US HWY 411 S.	MARYVILLE, TN 37801
KROGER 683	507 N. FOOTHILLS PLAZA	MARYVILLE, TN 37801
WALMART 4223	2410 US HWY 411 S.	MARYVILLE, TN 37801
KENJO MARKET 15	815 MONTVALE RD.	MARYVILLE, TN 37803
FOOD CITY 647	2135 E. BROADWAY AVE.	MARYVILLE, TN 37804
FOOD LION 1362	1707 LAMAR ALEXANDER PKY	MARYVILLE, TN 37804
FOOD LION 1467	2917 OLD KNOXVILLE HWY	MARYVILLE, TN 37804
KENJO MARKET 24	2003 E. BROADWAY	MARYVILLE, TN 37804
KENJO MARKET 8	1811 SEVIERVILLE RD.	MARYVILLE, TN 37804
E.W. JAMES & SONS - MCKENZIE	160, SOUTH MAIN	MCKENZIE, TN 38201
MISS CORDELIA'S	737 MISS CORDELIA'S GROCERY	MEMPHIS, TN 38103
CASTLE 11	1620 MADISON AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38104
FRESH MARKET 194	2145 UNION AVE, SUITE 110	MEMPHIS, TN 38104
KROGER 402	1759 UNION AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38104
KROGER 415	1366 POPLAR AVE	MEMPHIS, TN 38104
KROGER 288	1977 S. 3RD ST.	MEMPHIS, TN 38109
KROGER 488	3444 PLAZA AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38111
SAM'S CLUB 8258	1805 GETWELL RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38111
ALDI 71	2877 LAMAR AVENUE	MEMPHIS, TN 38114
KROGER 413	2269 LAMAR AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38114
SUPERLO 4	6532 WINCHESTER	MEMPHIS, TN 38115
WALMART 5122	2856 HICKORY HILLS RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38115
ALDI 70	4056 ELVIS PRESLEY BLVD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38116
CASTLE 51	4049 ELVIS PRESLEY BLVD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38116
KROGER 486	1212 EAST SHELBY DR.	MEMPHIS, TN 38116
WALMART 5196	5255 ELVIS PRESLEY BLVD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38116
FRESH MARKET 41	835 S. WHITE STATION RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
KROGER 430	540 SOUTH MENDENHALL	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
KROGER 491	799 TRUSE PARKWAY	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
SUPERLO 1	4744 SPOTTSWOOD	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
SUPERLO 6	4571 QUINCE RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38117

WHOLE FOODS 4	5014 POPLAR AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38117
ALDI 68	2765 S PERKINS ROAD	MEMPHIS, TN 38118
CASTLE 164	3071 S. PERKINS RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38118
CASTLE 56	3237 WINCHESTER RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38118
KROGER 451	2835 KIRBY PARKWAY	MEMPHIS, TN 38119
ALDI 69	4508 SUMMER AVENUE	MEMPHIS, TN 38122
BURKHEAD ENTERPRISES - EAST MEMPHIS- CASH SAVER	729 N. WHITE STATION RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38122
KROGER 439	4264 SUMMER AVE	MEMPHIS, TN 38122
SUPERLO 5	3942 MACON RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38122
ALDI 65	7520 WINCHESTER ROAD	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
COSTCO 353	3775 HACKS CROSS	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
KROGER 437	7942 WINCHESTER RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
SAM'S CLUB 6256	7475 WINCHESTER RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
WALMART 1248	7525 WINCHESTER RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
WALMART 5043	6990 E. SHELBY DR.	MEMPHIS, TN 38125
KROGER 425	2632 FRAYSER BLVD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38127
SUPERLO 3	3327 N. WALKINS	MEMPHIS, TN 38127
ALDI 62 KROGER 438	3176 AUSTIN PEAY HIGHWAY 3860 AUSTIN PEAY HIGHWAY	MEMPHIS, TN 38128 MEMPHIS, TN 38128
SAM'S CLUB 8292	2150 COVINGTON PIKE	MEMPHIS, TN 38128
SUPERLO 2	2155 COVINGTON PIKE	MEMPHIS, TN 38128
WALMART 1561	3950 AUSTIN PEAY HWY	MEMPHIS, TN 38128
WALMART 6807	6727 RALEIGH LAGRANGE RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38133
KROGER 339	6660 POPLAR AVE.	MEMPHIS, TN 38138
KROGER 401	4770 RIVERDALE RD.	MEMPHIS, TN 38141
KROGER 393	8039 HWY. 51 NORTH	MILLINGTON, TN 38053
WALMART 94	8445 US HWY 51 N.	MILLINGTON, TN 38053
PIGGLY WIGGLY 340	754 W. MAIN ST.	MONTEAGLE, TN 37356
FOOD CITY 602	1105 E. MORRIS BLVD.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37813
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 178	924 E. MORRIS BLVD.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37813
WALMART 685	475 CROCKETT TRACE DR.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37813
ALDI 9	154 W. PIN LANE	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
FOOD CITY 607	2310 SANDSTONE DR.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
FOOD CITY 646	4100 COOL SPRINGS RD.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
INGLES 313	2342 E. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
INGLES 85	3980 W. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814

PRICE LESS FOODS 473	1701 E. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY.	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 179	3700 W. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
ROADRUNNER MARKETS 180	1344 BUFFALO TRAIL	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
WALMART 5467	1997 BUFFALO TRAIL	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
WALMART 5468	1757 W. ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
WALMART 6370	4331 W. ANDRW JOHNSON HWY	MORRISTOWN, TN 37814
ALDI 55	315 MT. JULIET RD.	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
KROGER 578	401 S. MT. JULIET RD, SUITE 200	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
KROGER 590	4120 NORTH MT. JULIET RD.	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
PUBLIX 1220	11207 LEBANON RD.	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
PUBLIX 1268	655 SOUTH MT. JULIET RD.	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
WALMART 4482	300 PLEASANT GROVE RD, SUITE 600	MT. JULIET, TN 37122
TIETGENS	807 N. MAIN ST.	MT. PLEASANT, TN 38474
NAIFEH'S FOOD MARKET	27 CRIGGER	MUNFORD, TN 38058
KROGER 543	2946 S. CHURCH ST.	MURFREESBORO, TN 3712
WALMART 416	140 JOE B JACKSON PARKWAY	MURFREESBORO, TN 3712
ALDI 41	640 ROBERT ROSE DR.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37128
KROGER 532	2449 OLD FORT PARKWAY	MURFREESBORO, TN 37128
KROGER 565	4432 VETERANS PWKY	MURFREESBORO, TN 37128
PUBLIX 1172	4175 FRANKLIN RD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37128
WALMART 5148	1153 FORTRESS BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 3712
WALMART 5182	2478 NEW SALEM HWY	MURFREESBORO, TN 3712
KROGER 529	1776 W NORTHFIELD BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
KROGER 539	2325 MEMORIAL BLVD	MURFREESBORO, TN 3712
PUBLIX 1164	3415 MEMORIAL BLVD	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
PUBLIX 1234	2650 NEW SALEM HIGHWAY	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
SAM'S CLUB 6501	125 JOHN R. RICE BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 37129
SPROUTS 581	143 WENDELWOOD DR.	MURFREESBORO, TN 3712
WALMART 2757	2012 MEMORIAL BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 3712
WALMART 682	2000 OLD FOR PKWY	MURFREESBORO, TN 3712
KROGER 521	1622 MIDDLE TENNESSEE BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 3713
KROGER 564	2050 LASCASSAS PIKE	MURFREESBORO, TN 3713
PRICE LESS IGA 8	3060 SOUTH CHURCH STREET	MURFREESBORO, TN 3713
PUBLIX 1163	1731 S. RUTHERFORD BLVD	MURFREESBORO, TN 3713
WALMART 5057	2900 S. RUTHERFORD BLVD.	MURFREESBORO, TN 3713
PUBLIX 182	4670 LEBANON PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37076

PIGGLY WIGGLY 41	2900 WEST END AVE.	NASHVILLE, TN 37203
TURNIP TRUCK 2	321 12TH AVEENUE S.	NASHVILLE, TN 37203
KROGER 511	2615 FRANKLIN PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37204
WALMART 5616	2421 POWELL AVE.	NASHVILLE, TN 37204
KROGER 843	4560 HARDING RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37205
PUBLIX 1211	4324 HARDING PLACE	NASHVILLE, TN 37205
ALDI 47	615 GALLATIN AVE.	NASHVILLE, TN 37206
KROGER 880	711 GALLATIN AVE	NASHVILLE, TN 37206
TURNIP TRUCK 1	701 WOODLAND ST,	NASHVILLE, TN 37206
H.G HILL 9	3105 DICKERSON RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37207
WALMART 4435	3548 DICKERSON PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37207
KROGER 502	800 MONROE ST.	NASHVILLE, TN 37208
ALDI 46	405 AMERICAN RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
COSTCO 630	6670 CHARLOTTE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
KROGER 547	5705 CHARLOTTE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
PUBLIX 1298	6614 CHARLOTTE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
SAM'S CLUB 6447	615 OLD HICKORY BLVD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
WALMART 659	7044 CHARLOTTE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37209
ALDI 48	3758 NOLENSVILLE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
KROGER 537	5713 EDMONDSON PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
KROGER 542	61 EAST THOMPSON LANE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
KROGER 851	5771 NOLENSVILLE RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
OSBORNE'S BI-RITE 104	3302 NOLENSVILLE RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
PIGGLY WIGGLY 40	5127 NOLENSVILLE RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
PUBLIX 1116	15544 OLD HICKORY BLVD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
SAM'S CLUB 8294	1300 ANTIOCH PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
WALMART 3717	4040 NOLENSVILLE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
WALMART 5119	5531 EDMONDSON PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
WALMART 688	5824 NOLENSVILLE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37211
KROGER 567	2201 21ST. AVENUE SOUTH	NASHVILLE, TN 37212
OSBORNE'S BI-RITE 14	3116 BELMONT BLVD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37212
FOOD LION 1617	3636 BELL RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37214
KROGER 845	143 MCGAVOCK PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37214
PUBLIX 1426	2324 LEBANON PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37214
KROGER 895	2131 ABBOTT MARTIN RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37215
TRADER JOES 664	3909 HILLSBORO PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37215
WHOLE FOODS 5	4021 HILLSBORO PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37215

	KROGER 884	3410 GALLATIN PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37216
	ALDI 45	1911 RANSOM PLACE	NASHVILLE, TN 37217
	COMPTON FOODS	2808 SMITH SPRINGS	NASHVILLE, TN 37217
	KROGER 574	2284 MURFREESBORO RD.	NASHVILLE, TN 37217
	KROGER 533	3930 CLARKSVILLE PIKE	NASHVILLE, TN 37218
	H.G. HILLS FOOD STORE 12	415 CHURCH ST.	NASHVILLE, TN 37219
	KROGER 550	8141 STATE HIGHWAY 100	NASHVILLE, TN 37221
	PUBLIX 1133	8028 HIGHWAY 100	NASHVILLE, TN 37221
	PUBLIX 123	7604 HIGHWAY 70 SOUTH	NASHVILLE, TN 37221
	FOOD CITY 604	416 EASTERN PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER	NEWPORT, TN 37821
	FOOD CITY 614	181 WESTERN PLAZA WAY	NEWPORT, TN 37821
	KENJO MARKET 6	1004 COSBY HWY	NEWPORT, TN 37821
	PRICE LESS FOODS 475	208 W. BROADWAY	NEWPORT, TN 37821
	WALMART 678	1075 COSBY HWY	NEWPORT, TN 37821
	ALDI 14	111 WOODLAND TERRACE E.	OAK RIDGE, TN 37830
	FOOD CITY 681	1199 OAK RIDGE TURNPIKE	OAK RIDGE, TN 37830
	HANKS MARKET 45	691, EMORY VALLEY RD.	OAK RIDGE, TN 37830
	KROGER 690	1550 OAK RIDGE TURNPIKE	OAK RIDGE, TN 37830
	WALMART 1194	373 S. ILLINOIS AVE.	OAK RIDGE, TN 37830
	KROGER 462	7265 HWY 64	OAKLAND, TN 38060
	WALMART 4533	105 CHICKASAW RIDGE DR.	OAKLAND, TN 38060
	PRICE LESS IGA 492	4331 OLD HICKORY BLVD.	OLD HICKORY, TN 37138
t.	ALDI 88	5974 ELEMENTARY WAY	OOLTEWAH, TN 37363
	FOOD CITY 774	6043 RELOCATION WAY	OOLTEWAH, TN 37363
	PUBLIX 1244	5958 SNOW HILL RD, STE 168	OOLTEWAH, TN 37363
	WALMART 3835	5588 LITTLE DEBBIE PARKWAY	OOLTEWAH, TN 37363
	KROGER 391	1059 MINERAL WELLS	PARIS, TN 38242
	WALMART 177	1210 MINERAL WELLS AVE	PARIS, TN 38242
	PUBLIX 1515	2656 PARKWAY	PIGEON FORGE , TN 37863
_	FOOD CITY 610	3625 PARKWAY	PIGEON FORGE, TN 37863
	KENJO MARKET 40	3145 PARKWAY	PIGEON FORGE, TN 37863
_	KENJO MARKET 43	2870 GOOSE GAP RD.	PIGEON FORGE, TN 37863
	KROGER 536	220 WEARS VALLEY RD.	PIGEON FORGE, TN 37863
	ROADRUNNER MARKETS 165	6757 BRISTOL HWY	PINEY FLATS, TN 37602
	FOOD CITY 699	6681 BRISTOL HWY	PINEY FLATS, TN 37686

H.G. HILLS FOOD STORE 86	2498 HWY 49 E.	PLEASANT VIEW, TN 3714
FOOD CITY 679	7350 CLINTON HWY	POWELL, TN 37849
INGLES 399	430 E. EMORY RD.	POWELL, TN 37849
KENJO MARKET 23	404 E. EMORY RD.	POWELL, TN 37849
KROGER 670	234 E. EMORY RD.	POWELL, TN 37849
FOOD CITY 727	3901 DAYTON BLVD.	RED BANK, TN 37415
E.W. JAMES & SONS - RIPLEY	286, SOUTH WASHINGTON	RIPLEY, TN 38063
WALMART 97	628 HWY 51 N.	RIPLEY, TN 38063
FOOD CITY 612	1287 E. MAIN ST.	ROGERSVILLE, TN 37857
WALMART 3234	4331 HWY 66 S.	ROGERSVILLE, TN 37857
KROGER 484	775 PICKWICK RD.	SAVANNAH, TN 38372
WALMART 268	175 JI BELL LANE	SAVANNAH, TN 38372
ALDI 16	538 WINFIELD DUNN PARKWAY	SEVIERVILLE, TN 37862
FOOD CITY 667	741 DOLLY PARTON PARKWAY	SEVIERVILLE, TN 37862
WALMART 578	1414 PARKWAY	SEVIERVILLE, TN 37862
WALMART 5908	1185 DOLLY PARTON PARKWAY	SEVIERVILLE, TN 37862
KROGER 562	702 WINFIELD DUNN PARKWAY	SEVIERVILLE, TN 37876
FOOD LION 886	329 COLLOREDO BLVD.	SHELBYVILLE, TN 37160
KROGER 559	1010 NORTH MAINT ST.	SHELBYVILLE, TN 37160
WALMART 656	1880 N. MAIN ST.	SHELBYVILLE, TN 37160
PRUETTS SIGNAL MOUNTAIN MARKET	1210 TAFT HWY.	SIGNAL MTN., TN 37377
ALDI 25	407 SOUTH LOWRY ST.	SMYRNA, TN 37167
FOOD LION 1581	11459 OLD NASHVILLE HWY	SMYRNA, TN 37167
KROGER 553	463 SAM RIDLEY PKWY WEST	SMYRNA, TN 37167
PUBLIX 1016	661 PRESIDENT PLACE	SMYRNA, TN 37167
PUBLIX 1238	1640 LEE VICTORY PARKWAY	SMYRNA, TN 37167
WALMART 406	570 ENON SPRINGS RD. E	SMYRNA, TN 37167
ALDI 53	4917 MAIN STREET	SPRING HILL, TN 37174
FOOD LION 1354	5341 MAIN ST.	SPRING HILL, TN 37174
KROGER 594	4900 PORT ROYAL RD.	SPRING HILL, TN 37174
PUBLIX 1047	4935 MAIN ST.	SPRING HILL, TN 37174
WALMART 3017	4959 MAIN ST.	SPRING HILL, TN 37174
PRICE LESS FOODS 468	522 ANDREW JOHNSON HWY	STRAWBERRY PLAINS, TN 37871
KROGER 588	4726 TRADERS WAY	THOMPSONS STATION, TN 37179

[Ĩ	Ĩ	
	ALDI 54	2014 N. JACKSON ST.	TULLAHOMA, TN 37388
	FOOD LION 1067	411 WEST LINCOLN ST.	TULLAHOMA, TN 37388
	KROGER 561	1905 N JACKSON ST, STE 500	TULLAHOMA, TN 37388
	WALMART 667	2111 N. JACKSON ST.	TULLAHOMA, TN 37388
	E.W. JAMES & SONS - UNION CITY	705, E. REELFOOT AVE.	UNION CITY, TN 38261
	WALMART 675	1601 W. REELFOOT AVE	UNION CITY, TN 38261
	KROGER 545	510 HIGHWAY 76	WHITE HOUSE, TN 37188
	WALMART 4483	222 WILKINSON LN.	WHITE HOUSE, TN 37188
*	BATES FOODS	108 N. PORTER ST.	WINCHESTER, TN 37398
	WALMART 735	2675 DECHERD BLVD	WINCHESTER, TN 37398

APPROVED FOR ENTRY UPON THE MINUTE BOOKS OF THE TENNESSEE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE COMMISSION THIS THE 20th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016.

Mary McDaniel Chairperson

Clayton Byrd Executive Director